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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Ta the Members of
M/s INFRASTRUCTURE LOGISTIC SYSTEMS LIMITED,
(FORMERLY KNOWRN AS STOLT RAIL LOGISTIC SYSTEMS LIMITED}

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s INFRASTRUCTURE
LOGISTIC SYSTEMS LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as 21 31% March, 2024, the
statement of Profit and Loss, statement of Change in Equity and statement of cash flow far
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policles and ather
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements”)

in our opinion and to the best of our iInformaticn and according 1o the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the intormation reguired by the
Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”™) in the manner so required and give a true and falr view In
conformity with the indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended
and other accounting principles genarally accepted in India, of the state of affairs al the
Campany as at 31°" March, 2024, the profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended an that date.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing |SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our respansibilities under thase Standards are
further describad in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant 1o our audit of the financal statements under the provisians
of the Companies Act, 2012 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Cade of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis For our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of maost
significance in our audit of the standalone fimancial statements for the curreat period. These
matiers were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statemeanis
as a whaole, and In forming our apinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
o these matters,




Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are respoansible for the other
information, The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not Include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
theraon.

Qur apinion an the financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion therean,

In connection with our audit of the financlal statements, our responsibility is to read the
other infarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
incansistent with the financlal statements or cur knowledge obtained in the auwdit, or
atherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required communicate the matter to those
charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws
and regulations, We have nothing te report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in séctiop 1345 of
the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in Indla, Including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or arror,

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors elther intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to doso.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
Process.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as @ whale are free from materlal misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted In accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basls of thesa financial statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We alsa:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtaln audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral,

Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.,

Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materlal uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are reguired to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the daté of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease o continue as a
EQINE concerm.

Evaluate the owerall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlyng
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair prasentation.

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant
deficiancies in internal control that we identify during our awdit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of daing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the publlc Interest bemefits of such
commupication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguiremants

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order®), issued by
the Central Gowernment of India in terms of sub-section [11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Agrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

al We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit is of the
aforesaid financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have bean kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢l The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income|, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended.

g} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 319
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31" March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164{2) of the Act.




f]

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the intermal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company with reference to these financial statements and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
B” to this report;

A5 required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the
Company has paid and provided for remuneration to its directors during the year in
accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the aother matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in aur
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations glven
b us:

{l} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations an its financial
position In the notes to financial statements;:

(] The Company does not have any long<term contracts including derlvative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable lossas,

{1} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protaction Fund by the Company,

{I¥} {a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have bean
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other personis) or
entity{les), Including foreign entities [“Intermediaries”}, with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company |“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Litimate Benaficiaries;

(b} The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by
the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties"}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
["Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to thelr notice that has caused them to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} contain aaterlal mis-
statement. Y -




(V} The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in
contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

{Vi]Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trall (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course
of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with, And the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the
statutory reguirements for record retention.

For Shallesh Laddha & Co.
Chartered Accountonts
Firm Registration Number: 148004W

\'E
L

Shailesh Laddha

Fartmer
Membership Mo, 127677
UICHiN: 2412767 TERKAMOS 1442

Place; Mumhbal
Dated: 28" May, 2024



M5 INFRASTRUCTURE LOGISTIC SYSTEMS LIMITED,
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS STOLT RAIL LOGISTIC SYSTEMS LIMITED)

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Il{a}{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, Including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

{ia}(B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets during the year under audit.
Therefore, the requirement to repart on clause (I){a}[B) of the Order & not applicable to the
Company,

(i){b} All fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year
and there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, No material
discrepancieswers nated on such verification.

{il{c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease arrangement are duly executed in favour of the lesses)
are in held in the name of the Company.

{IHd) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of
use assets] or intangible assets during the vear ended 315 March, 2024,

(i{{e} There are no proceedings Initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(i} The Company do not hold any Inventories and hence, the requiremeant to report on
clause 3(iil(a} and 3{ii){bjot the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i} (&) During the year the Campany has provided loan to one related company, apart from
this the company has nat made any investrment nor provided any advances in the nature of
loans, stood guarantes or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships ar any other parties.

iiij}a} [A) the aggregate amount during the vear is Rs. 7670 million, and balance
outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances Is Bs, 97.50
million to the related company.

(b} The investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the loans given,
during the year are, in our opinion, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest,

(c] The loans and advances in the nature of loans and the schedule of repayment of
Principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments ﬂf the principal
amount and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulaticn,

T




|d} Based on the audit procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company,
there Is no overdue amount remaining outstanding at the balance sheet date.

(e} No loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company that have fallen
due during the year, have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of laans that are either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

liv) The Company has glven a Loan to a Company in which director & interested to which section
185 of the Companies Act, 2013 applies. Further, according to the information and explanation
givento us, provision of section 185 and section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of
Loans and investments have been complied with by the Company

{v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi} As explained to us, the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for the Company. Therefore,
the provisions of Clause {vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

{vii{{a) The Company |5 generally regular in depositing with appropriate authaorities
undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, vaiue added
tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
amounts pavablein respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year-end, for a
peried of more than six months from the date they become payable.

{(vilj{b) According to information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
pavable In respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state Insurance,
income- tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March 2024,

{viiiy The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded inthe books of account, In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 as Incomeduring the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viil] of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

[ix}la} The Company has nat defaulted In repayment of loans or other borrowings or In the
payment of interest thereon to any kender.

(ix)(b}] The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority,




(ix}{c} The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained by
the Company.

(i)(d] The short-term fund raised have not been utilized for leng term purposes by the
Company during the year.

{lx}e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Com pany, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the cbligations
of its associates.

{ix)(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)[f) of the Order is not
applicableto the Company.

(x}{a} The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer {including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3ix)a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x}{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3[x){b) of the Order |5 not applicable to the
Company.

(xi}ia) We have not noticed any case of fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company
by its officers or employees during the year. The management has also not reported any
case of fraud during the year,

(xi){b} During the year ne report under sub-section {12} of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(xfhic) According to the information & explanations and representation made by the
management, no whistie blower complaints have been received during the year [and up to
the date of the report) by the company.

(xii) The Company Is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3{xiij(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable 1o the Company.

[xiil) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv] The intermal audit is not applicable to the Company and hence requirement o repart
on clause 3{xiv] (a) and 3(xiv) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause wv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company,




(xvi){a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1534 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)ia) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

[xvif{b} The Company is not engaged in any Mon-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause {xvi)(b) of the Order 15 not
applicable to the Company,

{xvi)ic) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made byReserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{xvi] of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xvi}id) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the
requirement toreport on clause 3(xvi){d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

{xwii) The Company has not Incurred cash losses in the current financial year, The Company
hasnot incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xwiil] There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3ixviii} of the Order Is not applicable 1o the
Company.

(xix] On the basks of the financial ratios disclosed in the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial llabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directars and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
belleve that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company
is not capable of meeting its llabllities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance chdet date, We, howaever,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
peither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all labllities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and whenthey
fall due.

[sx){a) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR). There are no unspent-amounts that are required to be transferred to &
fund specified in Schedule Vil of the Act, in compliance with second proviso to Sub-Section
(5) of Section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in notes to the financial
statemaents, o
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(b] In respect of cngoing projects, there are no amounts reguired to be transferred o
unspent Carporate Social Responsibility (CSR) account as at the end of the previous financial
year and for the current financlal year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3xx)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Comparny.

For Shallesh Laddha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 142004\

o~
Shailesh Laddha
Partner

Membearship No. 127677
LIDEN: 2412767 TBEAMOZ 1442

Place: Mumbai

Dated: 28 May, 2024
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M/s INFRASTRUCTURE LOGISTIC SYSTEMS LIMITED,
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS STOLT RAIL LOGISTIC SYSTEMS LIMITED)

ANNEXURE-B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") .

We have audited internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s INFRASTRUCTURE
LOGISTIC SYSTEMS LIMITED ["the Company”) as of 31" March, 2024 in conjunction with aur
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year then ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for the Internal Financlal Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal cantrol stated in Guidance Note on
Audit oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities includes design, im plementation and
maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to Company's
policies, the safeguarding of the assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on Company’s internal financial controls over
financlal reparting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (,the Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143({10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls and both Issued by the ICAL Those Standards and Guidance note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal financial controls owver financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls cperated effectively in all
miatertal respects.

Our audit involves perfarming procedure to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internalfinancial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
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weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, Including the assessment of the riske of material misstatement of the financial
statemants, whether due to fraudor error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s Internal financial contrals system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and preparation of
financial statements for external purpose in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A Company’s internal financial control over financial repo rting includes those policies
and procedures that;

Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly refiect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Com pany;

Provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or dispasition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls ower financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial contrel over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriarate,

13



Opinion

In our apinion, the Company has, in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial control
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls aver financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31% March, £024, based on the internal contral aver financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 28" May, 2024
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For Shailesh Laddha & Co.
 Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 148004W

M? AJ[M .

£
Shallesh Laddha
Partner
Membership Na. 127677
UDIN: 24127677BKAMOZ 1442



Infrastruciore Logistic Systems Limited | Annual Report 2023-24
{Formerly known as Stolt Rail Logistic Systems Limited)

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(% in million)
As at LLE
raiius Notes| s arch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A& ASSETS
I Mon-Current Assets
(&) Property, plant and equipment v 43544 453,13
{15} Right of wse asset B KR -
(¢} Firancial assets
{iy Loans 8 57.50 20.88
{li} Orther fmancial assets 10 538 522
Total Mon-Current Assets 546.28 A79.31
I Current Assets
(a) Firancial agsets
(i} Current imvestments 11 5.2 1508
fif) Trade receivables 12 mm 2695
[iif) Cash and cash equivalents 13 .69 876
{iv) Bank balances other than (i) abaove 14 532 .54
{v} Loans 15 492 1351
(b} Current tax assets (nel) 15 25 890
(ch Cither carrent assets 17 216 135
Total Current Assets Bi.51 7694
TOTAL ASSETS 61379 EELAE
¥ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
fa} Eqsﬁrﬂum:npilaf 14 174.20 17420
() Oithear aquity % 25143 308,82
Total Equity 525.63 83,00
Linhilities
I Mon-Current Liabilities
fa} Financial Habilites
(i} Borrowings 20 1.0 149
{if) Lease Hability i 348 -
i) Provisions 2 343 233
(e Deferred tax [Eabilities (net) 2 5178 50,64
Taotal Mon-Current Liabilities 5595 54.48
Ml Curment Liabilities
fa) Financial labilites
{i} Borrowings 24 038 0.35
(i) Lease liability L] 5.19
(iif} Trade payables 25
i) Tetml antstandimg due bo micro and small enterprises 198 il
(if) Tokal cutstanding due to athers than micro and small enterprises 10.31 .08
{iv} Diher financial liabilitoes 27 5.91 152
(b} Cther current liabilities o 2, 1.74
[t} Provisions 29 238 1.81
Total Current Liabilities 28.17 1815
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 513,79 E55.65

The accampanying Motes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

For Shailesh Laddha & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Diredhors
Chartered Accountants

Fhm-snegn.wc;m:uw L/H&‘“ 1
e L

Ramesh Pilani
Chiel Financial Officer

Shailesh Laddha B
r - t"l:ﬂ' Ve :.-'_:. -::-
blemibership no.; 127677 .
UDib: 24167 TERAMOZT442

BMumibal, Moy 28, 2024
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Profit & Loss for vear ended Mbarch 31, 2024

(% in million)
Yearended | Year ended
Partleulars Nod
| March 31, 2024|March 31, 2023
I Hevenue From Operations 0 289,08 26585
I Other incomae | 1137 421
I Total Income {1+ IT) 30045 7411
IV Expenses
Emiployment benefit expenses 3z M 1886
Finanee costs 33 L=t 07
Depreciation and amortisaton expenses 34 2513 1987
Dither expenses 38 190,16 19532
Tatal Expenses 240,51 4.7
¥V Profit Before Exceptional Thems and Tax (TF-TV]) 54, 3.3
¥l Excepticnal Hems = 0.0z
VI Profit Before Tax (V-VT) 59.04 3930
VI Tax Expense
(1} Prior period tax (.0} {1
{2} Current tax 35 152 6.0z
i3] Deferrad tax 23 1,38 .06
IX  Frofit For the period (VII-VITI) 13380 817
(% Other Comprehensive Income 3z
Ttems thiat will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(1] Remaasuremment of defined benellt cldlgations 1.0% .31
(2] Income tax relating to these tems (0.26) 0,08}
Total Other Comprehensive Income 1,77 023
X1 Total Comprehensive Income for the period/year (TX-X) 42061 2801
XIl  Earnings Per Equbty Share: (of Bs. 10~ each) 3&
{1} Basic 249 166
{2} Dilated 249 1.54

The accompanying Mobes are an inbigral part of Ehe Financial Statements,

For Shailesh Laddha & Co,
Chartered Accountanis
Flrin's Regin Mo T4R004%

Shailesh Laddha

fetor
Membership no- 120677
LN 2412767 TBEAMOZ 1442

Mustnbai, May 28, 2024

;"ﬁxw""“" &’

Jagruti Gaikwad

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

;,.ij,'-&m.,'

Ramesh Filani

Chief Finencial Officer
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Stlt:mt:l‘ltﬂfﬂ!ﬂ_ﬁtl I.n.Bqn:il}'fﬂl: the year ended March 31, 2024

A, Eguity Share Capital
(¥ in millien)
Particulars No, of Shares | Amount |
As at March 51, 2023 . 1,74, 20,000 174.20
Changes in equity share capital during the year == =
As at March 31, 2023 1,74,20,000 174.30)
Changes in equiby share capital during the year - -
As st March 31, 2024 1,74,20,000 174.20
B. CHher Equity
(% in milkion)
Reserve & Surplus
Securliies Retatned | Items of other Tatal
Particulars
Premium Earnings | comprehensive
. Arccouant ol {mesme
Ax at March 31, 2022 136.90 142,59 . 279.89
Profit for the year - 20.17 {0.33) %03
[szued during the year = - - -
As al March 31, 2023 136,90 17116 023 30882
As at April 1, 2023 : 136.90 17216 (023]) 0881 |
Profit for the year = 43.38 X 4261
Issued during the year - = z 5
As at March 31, 2024 136,90 21553 [1.00) 351.43 |
The accompanying MNotes are an [ntegral part of the Financlal Statements,
For Shailesh Ladidha & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants r
Firm's Regn, Mo 148004W = s, o
S et g y.,/ SLotin’
J‘ G.“ o T ~“Mishi Pilani Jagruti Gaikwad Ramesh Pilani
£ Ww Director Chief Pinanclal Officer
(DI 1627} £
esh Laddha A
FProprietor
blemberahip no.: 1237677
UDIN: 24127677BKAMQZ 1442 ({'!

"Prahlad F
Mumbai, May 25, 2024 Chief Executive Officer
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

(% in million)
Year Ended | Year Ended
e o March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
A Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Met profit before tax 59.94 39.30
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25.13 19.87
Inberest received (2.13)| 219)
Finance costs 0.94 073
Profit/ Loss arising on financial assets measured at FVTPL (188 (0.08)
Operating profit before working capital changes 74.99 57.64
Working capital adjustments ;
Adfustment for (increase)/ decrease ;
{Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (002} (8.29)
(Increase)/ decrease in and other receivables (0.77) 256
Increase,/ {decrease) in trade payables 1.57 (12.34)
Increase;{decrease) in other payables 12.60 21.09
Cash generated from operations 13.38 3.02
Taxes paid (net of refunds) (8.96) 342
Net cash from operating activities 7941 6407
B Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, plant & equipment (15.30) {(7.78)
Decrease / (in¢rease) in current investment {830 {15.00)
Decrease / (increase) in short-term loans and advances 859 (7.09)
Decrease / (increase) in other non current loan [75.62) (20.BE)
Interest received 913 219
Bank balances (including non-current) not considered as Cash
and cash equivalents {net) {4.68) 10.38
MNet Cash used in Investing activities (87.19) (36.18)
C Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Procesds/ (Repayment) of long term borrowings (net} {0.38) (B.79)
Proceeds/ (Repayment) of short-term borrowings 0.03 (9.59)
Finance costs paid (net) (0.94) (0.73)
Net cash flow from in financing activities (1.29) [19.12)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (9.06) Gort
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 9.76 ﬁ
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.6%
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 0.0z 0.03
Balance in current account 0,67 El
0,65 .76

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note 13)
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WOTES

1.Hlmu.ﬂluluunﬂhhﬂmulmdn|kmﬂuhﬂh¢uﬂmﬂuz (% m millicn)
JETTTET
Mbovement in
Particul As af March ¥, Cash Fl L movement | As ad BMarch 31,
b1 Pk dorlng e 304
[labitities i
Beernwings . LBl T - (X 144
| Leas= Lishilities - [ 12 (5] B57
Hdhﬂ Liakilities from financing sctivities 1584 (8.1 1258 080 1215
nbevisi
Moy ement in
A pt s movement | As oi March 3,
Fartlrulars Cah Flows Lemsa
e Lisbilities “"‘ﬂ“’“" T
mtﬂ.ﬁ s w1l . EE 1.5
Tatal ies from dinancing activities FITEE [15.11 3 i 18

£ Figures in the brackets are catflows; dedurtices.
The svompanying boses nre an indegml part of the Flnancdal Swbmans,

Fie Ghailesh Laddba & Co.
Chartered Accounibanis
Firm's Regre Moo 1850HW

Shallesh Laddha

Propricter

Memberhip noo 120677
LM 2412767 7BECA DT 1942

bdmmbuai, May 28, 2004

For arsd on beball of Ehe Board of Directomns
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Note 1. Corporate information

Infrastructure Logistic Systems Limited (Formerly known as Stolt Rail Logistic Systems Limited) is an
Unlisted Public Company incorporated on February 26s, 2001 under the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 having Corporate Identity Number Us3032MH2001PLC130992 and having its registered office at C-501
and 502, Lotus Corporate Park, Off Western Express Highway, Laxmi Nagar, Goregaon East, Mumbai
400063,

The Company & in the business of providing rallway & road transportation and conditioned storage
facilities for bulk Hiquids,

The financial statements of the Company's for the year ended March 31, 2024 were authorized for issue in
accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors passed on May 28, 2024,

MNote 2. Statement of compliance

The financtal statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {referred
to as “Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Compamies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Mote 3. New and amended standards adopted by the company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see below),

and are effective April 1, 2023%;

» Disclosure of accounting policies - amendments to Ind AS 1

= Definition of accounting estimates = amendments to Ind AS 8

o Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single trangaction - amendments to Ind AS 12
The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.
These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods. Spedifically, no changes would be
necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company's accounting policy
already complies with the now mandatory treatment,

MNote 4. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statemenis of the company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS5), under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) except for certain financial assets and financial liabilides measured at fair value (refer
accounting policies for financial instruments),

Current versus non=current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilites in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classificaion. An assel is treabed as current when {t is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; o

Haeld primarily for the purpose of trading: or

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at least
bwelve months after the reporting period.

n};‘ﬁxw‘*"'&.
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A liability is classified as current when:

« [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or

» Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

v It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting pericd; or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Habllity for at Jeast twelve months after the
reporting period. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively. The operating cycle is the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents.

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
Mote 5, Significant acconnting judgements, estimates and assumptions

In the preparation of financial statements, the Company makes judgements in the application of accounting
policies; and estimates and assumptions which affects carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumphions are based on historical
experience and other factors thet are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these
estirmates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

The following are the critical estimates and judgements, that have the significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once in 3 years. Such lives
are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic
lives based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. This
reassessment may result in change in deprecialion and amortisation expected in future periods.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other cleims against the
Company, Potential liabilides that are possible but not probable of crystalizing or are wvery difficult to
quantify reliably are treated as contingent labilites. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not
recognised. The cases which have been determined as remote by the Company are not disclosed, Contingent
assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements unless when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Fair value measurements

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but whera this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liguidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and
E-::F-El:gg._q DS FALES. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to

P mpmt calculation, based on Company’s past history, credit risk. Emﬂng market conditions as well
| el gu&mamntmemdnfeﬂ:hﬂpmﬂngpeﬂnd i

{ :
A N / f
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Retirement benefit obligations

The Company's retirement benefit obligations are subject to number of assumptions including discount
rates, inflation and salary growth, Significant assumptions are required when setting these criteria and a
change in these assumptions would have a significant impact on the amount recorded in the Company’s
balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss. The Company sets these assumptions based on previous
experience and third-party actuarial advice.

Maote 6. Material accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statemnents is as
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the
financial statements,

a)

Property, plant and equipment (PFE)

Property, plant and equipment (except freehold land) held for use in the production or supply of geods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, it any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation & amartization

Deprecintion i recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation on Property,
Plant and Equipment has been provided on the straight-line method over their estimated useful life,
taking inte account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of
the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc.

Estimated useful lives of such assets are as follows:

| &r. No Assets Heads Remaining useful life
1 Plant and machineries including storage tanks 15-35 Years
2 Building 35 Years
3 Furniture and Office Equipment's 07-10 Years
4 Computer 3 Years
5 Vehicle 5 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset Any gain or Ioss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital work-in-progress

production or/ and
rmined, are carried
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at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. At the point when an asset is operating at management's
intended use, the cost of constructon s transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment, Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset are capitalised where the asset is
available for use and commissioning has been completed. Capital work-in-progress also includes spares
which are yet to be put to use,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amertisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated wseful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a

prospective basis,
Computer Software are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life.

An intangible asset is derecognised on dispasal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arfsing from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases

At inception of Contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is or contains a Lease. A Contract
is, or contains, a kease if the Contract conveys the right to Control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for Consideration. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that
containg & lease Component, the Company allocates Consideration in the confract to each lease
component on the basis of their relative standalone price.

Mg oa lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-
loase components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components. The Company recognises right of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use
asset measured at inception comprises of the amount of indtial measurement of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,

Certain lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that
such options would be exercised.

The right-of-use assets ame subsequently measured al cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability, The
right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straijght-line method from the commencement date over
the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable, Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.

Lease liahility is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
-u;;nmemement date of the lease, The lease payments are discounted l.umg the interest rate implicit in
, if that rate can b& mid:ljr dmrmhud Ifﬂut rate cannat he e diby LerminEI:L the Company

increasing the
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carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease Uability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
maodifications. The Company recognises the amount of the remeasurement of lease Hability as an
acdfustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises
any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and Joss,

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabilithes are expensed to the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the events or conditions which trigger those
payments oocur.

Payment made towards leases for which noncancellable term is 12 months or lesser (short term leases)
and low value leases are recognised in the stalement of Profit and Loss as rental expenses over the tenor
of such leases,

In a sale and lease back transaction, the Company measures right-of-use asset arising from the
keaseback as the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right-of-use
retained, The gain or loss that the company recognises in the statement of profit and loss is Emited to
the proportion of the total gain or loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer,

As a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a Lessor is classified as Finance or operating Lease, Lease income from
operating leases where the Company is a Lessor is recognized In Income on a straight-line basis over the
Lease Term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are inclhuded in the
balance sheet based on their nature.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial lisbilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrumenits.

Financial assets except trade recelvables and financial Habilities are initially measured at fair value
Trade receivables are initially measured at transaction value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Habilities [other than fnancial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less (FVITL)] are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial Kabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
vadue through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Purchases or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets
» Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these fnancial sssets are held within a
business whose objective is t© hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash fows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Effective Interest method

The effective interest method is & method of caleulating the amortised cost of & financial instrument and
of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant perind. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

« Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at falr value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost
ar at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. Gains or losses arising on
remeasurement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

. Impa_imuntc{ﬂnnm:[il assels

The Company recognizes loss allowances on a forward-looking basis using the expected credit loss
(ECL) model for the financial assets except for trade receivables, Loss allowance for all financial assets s
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The Company recognizes impairment loss on trade
receivables using expected credit loss model which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on
the basis of historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information as permitted
under Ind AS 109. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date is recognized as an impafrment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit
and Laoss.

+ Derecognition of financlial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another party and does not retain control of the asset. The Company continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of Company’s continuing invelvement.

On derecognition of a financial asset in ils entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in the Statement af
Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on disposal of that financlal asset.

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments

o Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrament.

» Eguity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a resicual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs,

« Financial Habilities
Trade-and other payables are indtially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
ubsaifligntly measured at amortised cost, using the effective interes g d where the ime value

-~
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Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is
recognised over the term of the bormowings in the statement of profit and loss.

* Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises financial hiabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a new lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognibion of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial lability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the criginal financlal liability and the recognition of a new
tinancial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
af qualifying assets are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is substantially
ready for their intended use. The Company considers a period of twelve months or more as a
substantial period. Cualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for
their intended use.

Transaction costs in respect of long-term borrowings are amortised over the tenor of respective loans
using effective interast method.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the perlod in which they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenues from rail legistics business is recognized when the service of loading of cargp into rail rake
starts for its delivery to the client's place. Revenuses from road logistics business is recognized when the
service of loading of cargo into tankers starts for its delivery to the client's place.

Revenues from Storage contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when
services are renderad,

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognises revenues on sale of products, net of discounts, sales incentives, rebates granted, returns, sales
taxes,/GST and dubies when the products are delivered to customer or when delivered to a carrier for
export sale, which is when Htle and risk and rewards of ownership pass 1o the customer., Export
incentives are recognised as income as per the terms of the scheme in respect of the exports made and
included as part of export lurnover,

Revenue from sales is recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to
sell / consume the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific
]ﬂcllil:rn, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the

has al:u:epted the products in accordance with the sales contract or the acceptance provisions

! - ‘r_-__,_,—
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Other Income
Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a ime proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been
establishad.

Employes benefits
Long term employee benefits Defined contribution plan

Payments lo defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for eligible employees in the form of
superannuation fund and provident fund are recognised as expenss when employess have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. The Company has no further payment obligation once the
contribution has been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contributions are recognised as emploves benefit expenses when they are dus,

Defined benefit plan

Defined banefit plans comprising of gratuity, and other terminal benefits, are recognized based on the
present value of defined benefit obligations which is computed using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carrled out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement
goains and fosses of the net defined benefit Lability/{asset) are recognised immediately in other
com prehensive income, The service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) are
recognised as an expense within employee costs.

Past service cost s recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when
any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichewver is earlier,

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Income tax
Current income fax

The tax currently pavable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the statement of profit and loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Company’s Hability for current tax s calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Dieferred tax is the tax expected to be pavable or recoverable on differences between the carrying value
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferrad tax
liakilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, In contrast, deferred tax assels

egnised to the extent that it is probable that future rofits will be available against
porary differences can be utilized, -
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The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all er part

of the asset to be recovered.

Mindmum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such
asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written
down to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period,

Provisions and contingent liabilities [ assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the abligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the management's best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When & provislon is measured using the cash flows estimated
i settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows {(when the

effect of the ime value of money is material),

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursetmnent will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised, measured and disclosed as
provisions in Standalone financlal statements. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the
Company has a contrect under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract,

A disclosure for a contingent Liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
ameunt of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future evenis not wholly within the
contral of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed enly when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

= the profit attributable to owners of the Company;

= by the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding tremsury shares. Diluted
ea_mjnpP:::Mreiscalmhtedhyidiuﬁngﬂwﬂgurﬁu&edinthedehumi:uﬁunnfl:lasj.caa.mingn
per share to take into account;

tax effect of interest and other fimancing costs associated with dilutive potential
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« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been cutstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Invenbories

Inwentories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs includes, expenses incurred in
bringing each product to its present location and condition and are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials, Consumables Stores

Raw materials /Consumables Stores are valued at cost after providing for cost of cbsolescence /
depletion. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis,
Finished goods and work in progress

Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based
on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. Provisions are made to cover slow-moving and obsolete items based
on historical experience of utilisation on a product category basis, which invelves individual businesses
considering their product lines and market conditions,

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
deposits which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value and have original maturities of less than three months, These balances with banks
are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Other bank balances include balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and
usage.

Exceptional items

When items of income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are of

such si#e, nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the
enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material ltems are disclosed separately as

fé{i’#@g g
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MOTE § ¢ Property, PMlasd And Eqwlpment

for boercevings [refar pobe 20 nd 34}

A (e

o
[l

-

33?51‘ L B~

it in melbony)
FURNITURE | COMPFUTIR
AT NGARS FREMIOW® | sumpings A axy | Vedide | AND OFFICE s
MACRIY EQLIFMENTS | BQUIPMENTS
[EET] T LT . (1] =] B, 14
: : 5 330 . [iT] 7.7
EL06 o [T FET] [ [T} (AT
- [ FE] - [ . A0 |
5100 ThE [ 230 7] (7] RIL
As at Mlach J1, 2002 . 122 104 . 1 05% 14342
| Diepreciaion charge for the yeer - R 17.58 214 [l 008 1987
Tispoaals . = e F - : i
[ALs al Masch 3L, 2023 . ) YT [3T] 0.3 o 163,70
fian Tor the 21 ¥ 0% [T} (] EET
Disprsals . x = i . : :
s f hdaseh 31, 2004 . ] 18671 [ [ [T} 18451 |
Trm Bzl value -
A ai March 31, 3038 5100 4530 317.33 .70 noj (L A |
[ al Wi AN SR 3308 FAL (3] [ T |
&) Tiile desds af alll the Immavable progeriles are held in B nass of the Canmpiny,
b} Fremperiy, plant and equipment {Vehicls) baving camying amound aggregating, 1179 millien [EL 15 million as ar Marcty 31, 2025, swhich are pledged a5 socuniny
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NOTE 8: Right-of-Use Assets (Refer Note 40)

(% in milllicm)
Building Flant and Total
Particulars Machinery
Garnss ElrrJ'EEED'I.IHI‘
As at March 31, 2022 = = _
Additions = . -
{Disposal - . -
As al March ¥, 2023 . = =
Additions 7.7 4.5 1227
(Dispasal - . 4
As al March 31, 2024 727 4.59 1227
Accumulabed Depreciation
A al March 31, 1022
E:lrpm-l.ul:lnn ex perses (refer note 34) - -
Dispasal = .
As af March 51, 2023 - = 2
Eepmhﬂnnm{r&u niote 34} .07 1.25 £.22
i = - =
Ag ab March 31, 2024 307 12% 4.3
As af March 31, 2024 421 375 705
Ag at March 31, 2023 - ] -
NOTE9: Loans
% in kMo
Ag al Ag at
Fatienisen March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Loans to relabed parties 57 50 .88
Total !il'_.ﬂﬂ 2088

a} The abeve loans have been given for business purpose to Ganesh Vishal Infra
Enginoering Private Limited at a interest rate of 12% p.a,
b) The Company has no leans and advances which are either repayable on demand or are

without specifying any terms or period of ropayment.

MOTE 10 : Oiher Flnancial Assets

(% in millian}
As at fa at
Fiicels March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin (43 (R
erity depesil 4.95 481
mvtal 5.38 Sl

*Mon-current margin money deposits with bank represent deposits not due for realization
within 12 months from the balance sheet date. Thess are primarily placed as secarity,
margin manegy against ssue of bank gnarantess, sic.

MNOTE 11 : Current Investments

(% in saillien)
Al at As at
it March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Iiivestments carried at fair value through profifand
o
Tnwestment in Mutial Fond 35-2'5 '.I.EJ:I-H-

Tatal

P \%\\
'.:n.l =
I %

" =
; ,,-=~

T 'H.-"\| .-"

/’M@g

L
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MOTE 121 Trade Recelvaliles

(% i enill o)
Awat Asal
e March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
L Unsecured amd consdemd good

Froan Relabed parties = -
Froan Oihirs e e | i

it Hawing significant crease in eredil rlsk - £

i Ceedit Imvpatrad . -
b e P

|Less : Allowance for bed and doubiful receivalilis 173 .

enpected eredil boss allowance}

[Tl T 28.599

1) I determiming the allowances for erecil lossas of Trade Recobvables, the Companmy has
used & practical expedient by computing the Expected Crediét Loss Allowanoe for Trade
Receivables based on a provision makris. The prencision makric Bk inbs sccount
hissorical ered i ks sxpirisncs and & adfestod for farwand keoking Inforsation. The
o poched Crecil Loss aliowance is based an the sgeing of the recofvables thatam doe
and the rates uged in the provision oratris.

b} Sinece the Company oaloalsles impedrment under the stmplifed sppeoach for Trade
Fecetvables, it is ot mequined bo pacstely treck changes bn creds ik of Trade
Feceivahies is the impalmsent amount represents Lifetime Expected Credit Loss.
Arcordingly, based or a harnenicus readlng of Ind A5 109 and the beeakcp
requisements under Schedule I, the disclosure for all such Trasde Recsivables i made
as showm abave

c} Traile receivables does not include any rrovivables from disectos snd altloss of the

Y.

Mevement in the sllincapce for bad and doubefu] receivahles (expected credii loss allowance]:

(¥ im enedllion)
Avm As il
i ki March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balands at the of ithe . .
A uri 17 .
Less: Teleased du e = £
Balsnce 2 the end od the yoar 1.7% -
Trede receivables ageing:
(& i enlibion)
Outstanding from following periods from dwe date of paymenl 2 an
Mlarck 31, 2024
FParticalars Less than i Mindls 1 Year 2 Your Wnre than
§ Mosdhs s To To 3 Total
1¥ear 2 Years 3 ¥ears Year
Conataeris Lo - Unsscmned
From Citbars / Ulinadis puded ] . = 1713 - FT ]
esar- Allowance for credit o e - - 173 : k|
Tslal "..."J'LEII = a a » el ]
Cutstanding from following proiods from doe date of payieent ai oo
Miarch 31, 2538
Eirw
FParticu bkt i i MMaonths 1 Year 1 Year More than
& Meni? To Ta Ta 3 Total
1¥ear 2 Years 3 Years Wear
Considered Gooil - Unsecured
| From Chers [ Lindlis patisd 1715 T3 YT - - 2059
(32 Allcwareoe for credit loss ; 2 . . E .
Total 1718 74 242 = - .40
,._w'ﬁ":f,:a : .-;fv W
e ___.-_'_._F,d__-——-—-}
o i

g A = ;r_*mmw 5\'-" @
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NOTE 13: Cash And Cash Equivalonts

(% in million)
As at As at
ko March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balances with banks in current accownv 067 [T
Cash in kand Q.02 003
Taotal LG9 .76
NOTE 14 : Bank Balances Other Than Cash And Cash Equivalents
{2 in million)
As at Mg at
Parficul
e March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balances with banks in depodit accoonks® 522 054
‘Total 512 054

*Bank deposit accounts represants original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months,

NOTE15: Loans
{® in mdllion)
As st A4 at
Pyt March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Unsecored, considered good
T other 366 13.51
To employess 126 000
Total 4.92 11.51
NOTE16: Curvent Tax Assels (Met)
(% in million)
feul As at A at
£ March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Income bax payments less provisions 22 B.90
[Total .25 8,90
NOTE 17 : Other Current Assets
(* in million)
Particulars Ag at As ot
March 31, 2004 | March 31, 2023
Adwvances to supplise 010 036
aid expanses 2,06 1.20
Total i L5S
NOTE 18 : Equity Share Capltal
([T i oo
Farticulars As af March 31, 2024 Al-lthhr:h.ﬂl.mlﬂ_
P of shares T in million No of shares ¥ in eillion
Aunthorised
Equity Shares
Bquity Shares of T10/- each 2.00,00,000 200,00 2,000,000, 00K} 200,00
Issned, subscribed and fully pald up
Equity Shares of €10/ - each fully paid 1.74.20,000 17430 1,74.20,00x1 174.20
Total 1,74,20,000 174.20 1,74,20,000 17430
{a} Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
(% In millico)
Liia A at March 31, mm As at March 31, 2023
Mo of shares ¥ in million Mo of shares T in milllon
At the heg;lnnlng nl"rhe- year 1,74,20,000 174.20 1,74,20,000 174.20
174,30, 000 174.20
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(b} Termg/Rights attached to Equity shares

The company has enly one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10/ - per share. Each holder of equity shane is entitled
ta ane vate per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend propased by the Board af
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the comparny, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preforential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the rumber of equity shares held

by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at March 31, 2024 As at Mareh 31, 2023
Mame of the sharehaolder % holding in % holding in
) Mo, of shares g ol Mo of shares e g
Equity shares of ¥ 10~ each fully paid
Ganesh Banzoplast Limitec 150,722,500 BL51% 1,50,72,600 B&.52%
Ravi Piland 2238400 12.85% 32,33, 400 1186%
{d) The details of promoters shareholding are as under
Ag at March 31, 2024 As al March 31, 2023
Mame of the shareholder } %o halding in : % holding in
St the class s the class
Equity shares of ¥ 1= each fully paid
Ganesh Benzoplast Limited* 1,50,72,600 B5.52% 1,50.72,600 BA.51%
Ravi Piland 22,539,400 1286% 2,329,400 1286%
Anchal Pilani 48,000 0.55% 8.000 0.56%
| Rishi Pilani 10,000 0.06% 10,000 {.04%
* Four equity shares held by nomiines shareholders of Ganesh Benzoplast Limibed,
MOTES 19 : Cither Equity
— (¥ I millea)
Reserve & Sorplus
Securities LRetained Itweme of athes Tatal
Tiaticnlue Premium Esrmings | comprehensive
Account income
As at March 31, 2022 13640 14299 = I79.89
Profit for the year - 2917 0. 23) 28.93
[ssued during the year - - - .
As al March 31, 2023 136.90 17216 110.25) 308,52
As at April 1, 2023 136.90 17116 [0.25) 308,82
Profit for the year - 4338 .57} 4261
[Tssued diring the year - = % -
As at Magnch 31, 2024 13690 Z15.53 {1.00} A51.43

Mature and purpose of reserve:

1. Securities Premium: Securities premium s usesd fo record the prembum on lssuwe of shares. The reserve is otilzed in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 20013,

2, Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earmed tll date, less any transher io General
Reserve, dividands or other distributions paid to sharcholders, The reserve can be utilised in accordancs with the provision of

the Companies Act, 2013,
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WOTE 20; Borrowlings

(¥ In millian}
As al M at
TRrEs March 31, 2028 | March 31, 2023
Term loans secured

) From Banks 149 1.84
Less : Current maturities (refer nobe: 24) .38 A5
Total 110 1.49

a) Details of Interest and repayment schedule for secured long term borrowings s as under;

Loan outetanding as at
Rate of Security /
Type OFf Loan March 31, 2024
MNuon Current Cufrent i i
Secured by
by pothecation
Axls Bank 1.10 038 B30% p.a.[charge on Car
MOTE 11 : Lease Liabilitics
(% in million)
As at As at
Epars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Lease Liabilifies {refer note 40) 3.48 -
Tital 3.48 -
MOTE 22 : Provisions
(% In million)
AS at AR at
S tciuas March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Provislan for employes beneflts
Gratuity {refer note 42} 363 233
Total .63 23%
NOTE 23 : Deferrad Tax Liabilitles {Net)
(¥ in million)
Recognised in
Opening | o rcopnissdin |  other Closing
Deferred tax (Habiliiles)/assets Balamce Stat b of - | eaaipribeaie Balance
recognised in relation o (As at April P [As at March
Profit and Loss | ¢ income
01, 2023} (ac 31, 2024)
Froperty, Plant and Equipment Bz (1.72) - (53.84)
Right-to-Use Assets - (2.0 = (200
Other temporary differences LA8 la = 154
Allowance for doubtful sdvances/ debts Leass Liabilities - 1% - 218
Deferred tx (labilities) assets in relation to OCT: 0.08 - 0.26 034
Dreferred Tax (liabilities)fassets [net) [ 50.65) {1.38) (.26 51.75)
{1 in miillign)
Dpening | g cipnised in e % Closing
e Deferred tax (Labilities)fassets Balance Balance
L i i weladiion to {As at April Statement of | comprehensiv (As at March
ol i N Profit and Loss | e income
S 0, 2022} focT) 31, 2013)
At and Equipment [46.67)| {5.44) - B
b=t ! - sels - - =t
; emiprrary differences - 1.3 1.34
Allowance for doubtiul advancas, debts Lease liabilities - - . -
Deferred tax (Liabilides)/assets in relation to OCT: > 0.08
Deferred Tax {liabilitiesyassets (net)

e
L

L

o S
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MOTE 24 : Borrow ings

(¥ in million)
A at s at
e March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Secured
Current maturities of Term loans from banks & Others
&) Current maturides of bank loan 038 035
Taotal 038 0,35
MWOTE 25 : Lease Liabilities
{¥ in million)
Ao at s at
Kacientxry March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
[Ceasa liahilities (refer note 40) 519 ¥
Total 519 -
NOTE 26 : Trade Payables
{% in million)
As al A al
Parliculars
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
[Trade payables
total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; 1.98 e
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre and
amall enlerprises 10.51 #.08
Total 1225 .72

i} Disclosure with respect to related party transaction is glven in note 44,

H) Mlero and small enterprises ander the Micro, Small and Medium Entarprises
Develapment Act, 3006 have been determined based on the information avaidlable with
the Company and the required disclosures are given balow:

Farticulats March 31, 2084 | March 31, 2023
The principal amount remaindng unpaid to supplier as
{at the end of sccounting year 1.98 2.64

The interast dus thereon remaining uapaid to saupplier
lag at the end of sccoonting year

The amount of lnterest pabd in terms of section 16, along
with the amounts of the payment made fo the supplier

{beyond the appainted day during the year

The amount of inten=st due and payable for the period
of delay in making payment {which have been paid bug
beverd the appolnted day during the vear) but without
adding the interes: specified under this Act

The amount of interest accrued during the year and
r:mdn:lnﬁunpﬂd it the end of the accounting year

[ The amount of further Interest remaining due and
pavable even in the succeeding vears, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
micro and small enterprises, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure
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i} Trade pagablis ageing :
el
‘Crusstanding from follewing perfods from due date of pryment &5 an
March 31,204
Particular Lobe thim i Bfanths 1 Year 2 Yoar ihin )
& Motth To Ta Ta I E“,._'m Taodal
1"I'E 2 Years 3 Years
Trade payablss
[T} Micrs enhirpriaes nﬂdmﬂuﬂlnmhn 1,98 - - 1,06
Chen 105 - - 1031
Tedal 1179 . - = 1009
Dutstasding fromn fallowing perbods From due date of payment 23 on
March 31, 2623
Pasticalar
Tns thumt b Manths 1 Yur 2 Vi ihan 3
6 Momths n To Te N Tets)
1¥war 2 Years 3 Years
Traie pavables
{1} Miceo eterprises and small enterprises L a . L6
{Hhers 8.8 - - A8
Total 10.72 . - = .7
MOTE &7 + Othser Flnancial Linkdbities
{tinmilien]_
Agal A at
Peithealis March 31, 20134 | March 31, 3625
A uglie fees payalbile 0.5 146
Deposity a6 i
Thitersid Incims 0.4 -
Crutstandling lisbilities 442 307
Total 54 EH
MOTE 25 ; Cerrent Liabilities
(® in million)
A at Jh
Plrblinctam March 31, 2098 | March 31, 3033
|Statutory dues
TS payable 023z -
CAT payabls 166 170
EFF payuble 0 oM
Prrodeminal e ani MLWF 0.0 o]
ntal ] 1.74
MOITE 29 : Prewlalons
- {¥ in millian}
Prticiil ai As af
H.II.I-EIEI!HIH H.IHH.HIE
Frovision for empluyes benifiks
Corabulby (refier nobe 42) 238 1.0 |
| Tontal ‘Z/’ 141
/ '29\,
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MOTE 30 ; Revenue From Operations

{% in million)
Year ended Year ended
L o March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Revemoe [rom sale of services
Service income from rail logistics business 13292 123484
Storage and warehouse services 10454 10866
Road trarsport charges 3841 3735
Criher Business Services 1321 -
Total 239.08 269.45 |
MNOTE 31 : Other Income
(% in millicn]
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March ¥1, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Interest on bank deposits 0.3 0.3
Interest an mber corponate deposits 7. L=
[mterest others 114 130
Unwinding of interest on financial assets carried af amortised cost 0,63 .
Interest on income tax refund 035 1.31
Galn on sabe of current investment designated as FVTPL 188 g8
iCrther income 0.0 [L5d
I?nm’ 11.37 4.26 |
NOTE 32 : Employes Benefits Expense
(¥ in milliom)
S Year ended Year endad
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Selarees, wages and bonus 35 1780
Contribution to provident and other funds {refer nobe 42.4) 00E il
Gratuity [refer nole 426(a)) 083 0.5
Tatal 24.29 15.86
NOTE 33 : Finance Cosl
(¥ in million)
Year ended “ear ended
= Blarch 3, 2024 | Maxch ¥, 2033
Interest on barrowings o.14 073
Interest expense on lease Habilities [refer note 40) 0.7a -
Eriterest Expenses On Ind As 003 -
Diher borrowing costs and bank charges .01 0,00 |
Taotal .94 073
MOTE 34 : Depreciation And Amortisation Expense
(% In milben)
sicul Year ended Year emded
; § N [31" March 3024|31st March 2023
Drepreciation of property, plant and equipmient {refer note ¥) 20181 1987
Depreciation on right of use nssets (refer note 5) 432 -
[Total 25.13 19.87
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MOTE 35 : Other Expenses

1% b mmdllion)
1 Year ended Year ended
Parti March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Agdvertisement cxpenses . o
Auditors remuneration (refer note 35.1) 050 (e
C5R contribution expenditure { refer note 44} 09 1.07
Delay payment charges .05 013
Director sitting fiees [refer note 43) 17 .30
Danakicn Q.2 0.0z
General expenses (.46 .61
Insurance .38 .33
Labour, service, freight, warchousing and handling charges etc. 8.8 9.3
Legal and professicnal fees 568 7an
Licence and application fee ° .23 .48
Postage and telephone 0.07 006
Fower nnd fual charges 5 5489
Printing and statbonary 0,16 015
Property tax and land revenne 0.19 019
Proviion for bad and doubtful 176 036
Rake hire and management charges paid to central government
{mindstry of milway | 7652 67 A1
Rake hire and management charges paid to others TAB 93
Rent 029 a2z
Bepalrs and maintenance 030 041
Foad transpartetion charges 277 13
Sales promodicn expenses D44 05
ite allowance = i ]
Storage sorvices 5435 5606
Storas, spares and packing material consumed 1.05 157
Tank contniner leass charges 110 +14
Travellng and conveyance expenses 063 054
Water charges 013 0.12 |
[Tatal 190,16 195,32
NOTE 35.1 : Payment To Audifor
(% in million)
Year ended Year ended
Fatioi March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Statutory audit fees inchuding limibed review 0.7 0.
Bor taxation matters 018 017
Crther services 006 003
(Total 01,50 (.46
MOTE 3 : Income Tax Expense
{E in million)
Yeur ended Year ended
Pucticulney March 31, 2024 | March 53, 2023
[Current tax =%
Le respect of the current year 1522 .02
In respoct of prior years (004} 005 |
1518 BT
Deferred tax
138 404

Ini respect of the current year

In respect of prior years

|‘I'n'ral ln:nmlu expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Losa
|
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the stamtory income tax rate fo

recognied income tax expensges for the vear indicated are as follows:

(% im endllicn)
Particulars Year ended Yeur ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Prafit before tax R 330
Expected tax rate in India 25.17% 2517%
Espected income tax expense at statutory ks rate 15,09 6.8
Expense not deductble in determining taxable profit 014 {3.88)
Tax expense for the year 151 602
Effective income Fax rate 25.39% 15.31%
MOTE 37 Componernts OF Other Comprehensive Income [OCI)
(2 i o)
Particulars Yearended | Yearended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Remeasurement gains(losses) on defined benefit plans 108 GEH
Tax on remeasurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans .25 {008}
Tofal 077 0.23
NOTE 33 | Earnings Fer Share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
¥ Tear ended Vear ended
Particulars
- March 31, 2024 | March 31, 3023
Face Yalae of Egully Share 710 110
Profit for the year before exceptional items (% in million) 4338 1593
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basle EPS and diluted 1742 1742
| Total welghted averaps potential equity shares . -
Weighted average number of eguity shares adjusted for the effect of 1742 17.42
dillatien
Earning per share (¥} Basic 249 154
Earning per share (T} Diluted 248 1.66
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Mote 39, Contingent Liabilities not provided for

(2 in million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
* Show Cause Notice (SCN) No. ZD270522010463T dated 05.05.2022
recelved from Deputy Commissioners of State Tax for the F.Y, 2017- - 6.59
2018 for mismatch of input tax credit and same was drop by
dapartment, |

* Arbitration with M/s Indorama Synthetics Ltd. - The matter is curtently under arbitration, and the
Company had filed a counterclaim, According to the arbitration award issued on December 30, 3024, the
Arbitrator partially upheld the Company's claim against Indorama, granting Rs, 213,03 million. This
includes Rs. 102,08 million, which will accrue future interest at a rate of 12% per annum from the date of

the Award until it is realized. The Arbitrator also partially upheld Indorama’s claim, awarding Rs. 22.08
million, with Rs. 10.25 million subjects to future interest at the same
Indorama have since challenged the Arbitration Award in the High C

rate. Both the Company and
ourt of Bombay and the District

Court of Nagpur, respectivaly.
Mote 40. Lease
{7 in million)
Year ended Year ended
Particniars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

The Balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases;

| Right of use assets 7.96 H
Buildings 421 .

| Plant and Machimery 375 -
Lease liabilities B.67 -
Current (refer nobe 25) 519 | -
Non-current (refer note 21) 348 -

{* in million)
' Year ended Year ended
Paty sl March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss
Deepreciation charge on Right of use assets (refer note 8) 162 -
Buildings 337 -
Plant and Machinery 1.25
Interest expense included in finance cost 0,76 -

Note 41, Financial Instruments

A. Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to sharcholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity, The capital
structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in Motes 20 and 24 offset by cash and
cash equivalents in Note 13) and total equity of the Company. The Company is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. The Company monitors eapital using a gearing ratio, which ks net debe

divided by total equity.
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The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, ie. equity and
financial Babilities, The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

Gearing ratio (% in million)
. As ab As al
Partioulsse March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Borrowings 149 1.49
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 065 976
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 592 054
Less: Current investrnents 5 3 15.08
Met debt (A) 20 49 2389
Total equity (B} 52563 483,00
Net debt to equity ratio (A/B) o6 0,05
. Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company that are managed as capital,
ii. Debt is defired as long- and short-term borrowings, as described in note 20 & 24.
B. Fair Value Meagurement
i. Categories and hierarchy of financial instruments
The carrying values of the financial instruments by categories were as follows:
(% in million)
As at March 31, 2024 As al March 31, 2023
Particulars Amortised Amortised
FVTPL FVTOC Cost FVTPL FvTOCI Cost
Financial assets Measured
at amortised cost
Investments - current 25.26 - - 15.08 - -
Investments - non-current - - a : -
Trade receivables - - 2701 i = 24,849
Cash and cash equivalents - - L.a9 - - 976
Bank balances other than
- - ; - - (.54
cash and cash equivalents i
CHher financial assets - - 107,80 - - 39,61
Financial Habilites
Measured at amortised
ciost
Long term Borrowings - - 149 - - 1.84
Trade payvables - - 1229 - . 10,72
Other financial liabilities - = . = 351
j=Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

e

- =,
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i. Asgets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed ([t is

categorised under Level 3 of fair value hierarchy).

A ab March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Fair Value | Carrying | FairValue | Carrying
Ammourk Amount
Non-current financial assets
Investments - - - -
Loans o750 9rs0 20,58 20.88
Chiher Financial Assets 538 538 522 522
Mon-current financial liabilities
B 1.10 1.10 149 1.49
| Lease liabilities 3.48 3.48 — -

During the perieds mentioned above, there have been no transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy,

The carrying amounts of current trade receivables, current financial assets, cash and bank balances, loans,
trade payables, current borrowings, current financial lHabilities and current lease labilities are considered to
be approximately equal to their fair value,

iii. Assats and lHabilities which are measured at FVTPL ar FVTOCT

Falr value of the Company’s financial assets and financial labilities are measured on a recurring basis at
the end of each reporting period.

Financial risk management

The Company has a Risk Management Committes established by its Board of Directors for overseeing the
Risk Management Framework and developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company's activities expose it to a varlety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and
liguidity risk, The Company’s Risk Management Committee focuses to minimize potential adverse effects of
all the risk on its financial performance.

The risk management policies are established to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks, setting
acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these risks, monitor the risks and their
limits, improve risk awareness and transparency. Risk management systems are reviewed regularly to
refiect changes in the market conditions and the Company's activities to provide rellable information to the
Management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
risk faced by the Company.

The risk management policies aim to mitigate the following risks arsing from the financial instruments:
- Market risk

= Credit risk: and
= Liguidity risk

b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in the market prices. The value of a financlal instruments may change as result of change in
interest rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is
attributable to all market risk sensitive Anancial instruments including pa
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The Campany management evaluates and exercise control over process of market risk management. The
Board recommends risk management objective and policies which includes management of cash resources,
borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

g} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are
borrowed at both fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow
sensitivity for changes in variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated
in rupess with a mix of fixed and floating rates of interest. The risk Is managed by the Company by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The following table provides a break-up of the Company’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

(% in million)
| As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fixed rate borrowings - -
Floating rate Borrowings 149 1.84
Total borrowings 1.49 1.84

Interest rabe sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate

liabilities, assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end was outstanding for the whole
YEAT.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in Interest rates on that
portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the companies profit before tax is
affected through the impact on interest rate borrowings, as follows:

(% in million)
As af As al
Faty March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Assumptons
Interest Rate Interest Rate Interest Rate Interest Rate
Senaitivity Level
{,5% incTease 0.5% decrease {0.5% increase 1.5% decrease
Impact on statement of profit
asiac {0.01) 0.01 {0.07) 0.
Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial Joss to the Company, Credit risk encompasses both, the direct risk of default and the risk of
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company has adopted a pelicy of only

dealing with credit worthy counter parties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
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Trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenuve earned from customers. Customer
credit risk is managed centrally by the Company and subject to established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management, Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive
credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits defined in accordance with the assessment,

Trade receivable consist of a single customer with no significant concentration of credit risk. The outstanding
trade receivables are regularly monitored and appropriate action is taken for collechion of overdue
receivables. Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company’s normal
terms and condiions of business. The credit quality of the Company's customers is monitored on an
ongoing basis and assessed for impairment where indicators of such impatrment exist. The Company uses
simplified approach (i.e. lifelime expected credit loss model) for impairment of trade receivables. The
solvency of the debtor and their ability to repay the receivable is considered in assessing receivables for
impairment.

The amount of Trade receivable outstanding (without expected credit loss allowance) is as follows:

(% in million)
Outstanding from following periods from due date of payment as on March 31,
2024
Farticular Leas i 6 Months 1 Year 2 Year More than
& Months To To To 3 Tutal
1Year 2 Years 3 Years Year
March 31, 2024 2874 = = = 3 Z6.74
March 31, 2023 1715 | 743 242 - - 26.99
Reconciliation of loss allowances provision - Trade Receivables
(% in million)
As at As at
il March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Created during the year 1.73 -
Lass: Released during the year . =
Balance at the end of the year 1.73 2

Concentration riske
Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risks from balances with banks and financial institotions are managed in accordance with the
Company policy. The Company attempts to limit the credit risk by only dealing with reputable banks and
financial institutions having high credit- ratings assigned by credit-rating agencies and hence the risk is
recluced.

Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the possibility that the Company may be unable to meet its financial obligations
promptly or at a reasonable cost. Effective liquidity risk management requires maintaining adequate cash,
marketable securities, and access to committed credit facilities to meet obligations as they come due. The
Company ensures funding flexibility by maintaining sufficient credit lines and continuously monitoring its
liquidity pesiticn, including cash flow forecasts and cash equivalents. Management tegularly evaluates the
mkgw%d the Company’s debt and has determined it to be low. ol
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The accompanying tables outline the Company’s contractual maturity for non-derivative financial liabiities,
based on undiscounted cash flows that include both interest and principal amounts. These tables corsider
the earliest possible payment dates. For floating rate interest flows, the undiscounted amounts are derived
using interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period, reflecting the Company's commitment 10
prudent financial planning.

Liquidity exposure as at March 31, 2024

(% in million)
Particulars <lyear 1-Gyears >5 years Total |
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 038 1.10 L 1.49
Lease Liabilittes =19 3.48 . 8.67
Trade payables 1229 - : 12,59
Oither financial Labilites 541 - . £91
Total financial liabilities 2377 4.58 i 26.36
Liquidity exposure as at March 31, 2023
(2 in million)
Particulars <lyear 1-Gyears =5 years Total
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 088 149 ) 1.54
Leasge Liabilities . - , -
Trade payables 10.72 . e 10.72
Citheer financial lHabilities 552 . - as2
Total financial Habllities 14.60 1.49 = 16.09

Mote 42. Employes Benefit Obligations
(A) Defined contribution plan

The Company contributes towards retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. Under these
plans, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs.

Company's contribation to provident fund recognised In statement of profit and loss of T 0.08 million
(March 31, 2023 7 0.08 million)

B} Defined benefit plans

= The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age.
P )

e W

ity plan ls covered by The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under the gratulty plan, all employees
d to Gratuity Benefits on exit from service due to retirement, resignation, or death at the rate of
salary for each year of service with payment ceiling of 2 20 lakhs. The d for gratuity

“'-.-f"’_.':_-_-,...:.u.g- svable under The Payment of Cratuibe-Act, 1972 is 5 years, _
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Under the Compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible emplovess on separation
from the Company due to death, retirement, superannuation or resignation. At the rate of daily salary, as
per current accumulation of leave days.

The above defined benefit plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk,
interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian
Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds, Currently,
for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in Insurance
related products.

Interest rate risk | A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this
will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments,

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of plan parbicipants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the Iife expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan's lahility.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to
the: future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s lability.

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employess.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benehit obligation were carried out
at March 31, 2024 by Independent, Qualified Actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligation,
ared the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit

imethod,
{a) Gratuity
(i} Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation
(% in million)
- Gratuity as om March 31
ool 2024 2023
Current Service Cost
| Present value of obligation
Defined Benafil nh].lgal.lm at hlrglnnllnE ﬂf}"E’ﬂJ’ 4.14 2.85
Current Service Cost {16l A1
Interest Cost 0.24 0.4
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses on Obligations
| - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions - .
- Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 0.04 {0,719
- Due to Experionce 0.5
Pasl service cost 044
Benefits Paid .
. [ Amount recognised in balance sheet {refer note 22 & 29) 4.14
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{ii} Expenses recognised In statement of profit and loss account

(¥ in million)
- Gratuity as on March 31
2024 2023
Current Service Cost 0.60 041
Met Interest Cost 0.24 014
Past Service Cost - 0.44
Total included in "Employee Benefit Expenses/(Income}) s 0.99
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
Actuarial (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation 1.0 021
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in other 031
comprehensive income 1.03 '
(ifl) Actuarial assumptions
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fasticelars {12 months) {12 months)
Discount Rate 7.15% p.a. 7.30% pa
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% p.a. 7.00% pa
Withdrawal Rates Age 35 & Below: 10 % pa Age 25 & Below: 10 % p.a,
251035:10 % pa. 25403510 % pa,
35t0 45: 10 % p.a. 35to45: 10 % pa. |
JJ.E'MEE:I[JE-]:I.H. 4510 55: 10 % pa,
55 & above: 10 % pa. 535 & above: 10 % p.a,

The amount included in the financial statements arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of
its defined benefit plan is as follows:

Gratuity as on March 31
Deseriptl
e 2024 2013
Present value nfnblkgglrbnn &.01 4.14
Net llability / (asset) arising from defined benefit Eifi T,
obligation :

/ (#—"'f @i %‘,jmwi-"';';
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(vl Sensitivity Analysis - Gratuity

{¥ in million
Gratuity as on March 31
Description 2024 2013

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current
Assumptions .01 4,14
Dhiscount Rate
(.5 percent incriase 5.87 4.05 |
(% change) -2.39% ~2.29%
0.5 percent decrease 6.16 4.25
(% change) 2.53% 244%
Salary Excalation Rate
0.5 percent increase 6.16 425
(% change) 2.53% 2.43%
(.5 percent decrease 5.8 4.05
(% change) -2.40% -231%
Withdrawal Rate
0.5 percent increase &.00 4.14
{% change) -0.11% -0.08%
0.5 percent decrease 6.02 4.‘?5
(% change) 0.11% 0.07%

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all sther assumptions

constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the
projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of
one ancther as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit
obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as

recopnised in the balance sheet.
(vi] Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation
(% in million]
Less than a Between Between
Particulars year 1toSyears | 6o 10 years Lol

As at March 31 2024

Projected benefit payable 238 1.56 1.68 562

As at March 31 2023

Projected benafit payable 1.81 1.01 1.11 3463
. el
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Mote 43, Related Party Disclosures as Required by Ind As 24 “Related Party Disclosures™ Are Given Below

{a) Details of related parties with whom transactions have taken place

Key Management Personnel {(KMP)

Mr. Rishi Pilani (Managing Director)

Ms. Jagruti Gaikwad (Independent Director)

is. Neha Tendel (Independent Director)

Mr. Ramesh Punjabi (Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Anish Modi (Non-Executive Director) (resigned w.e.f. November 01,2023)
Ms. Ekta Dhanda (Company Secretary)

Mr. Prahlad Swaroop (Chief Executive Officer)

Relative of Key Management Personnel (KMF)
br. Ramesh Pilani (Father of Mr. Righi Pilani)
Mrs. Anchal Pilani (Sister in law of Mr. Rishi Pilani)

Entities where contral / significant influence by KMPs and their relatives exists and with whom

transaction have taken place
Ganesh Vishal Infra Engineering Private Limited

Holding Company
Ganesh Benzoplast Limited (w.e.f. November 13, 2020)
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{b) Details of transactions with related parties

(¥ in million}
; Year ended Year ended
MName of Related party / Nature of Transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Director’s Sitting fees
Ms. Jagruti Galkwad 0.07 0.03
bz, Meha Vatbhav Tandal 0.08 (1T
Mr. Ramesh Punjabi 0.02 -
Mame of related party/Nature of Transaction
Ganesh Benzoplast Limited / Service Obtained 57.35 59.06
Ganesh Benzoplast Limited / Purchase of Goods 1.41 17
Salary
Wir. Rishi Filani 951 .51
Ms, Anchal Pilani 3,00 1.50
Mz, Ekta Dhanda .46 .41
b7, Prahlad Swaroop 3.10 303
Professinal Fees
dir. Bamesh Pilani 4.39 4,50
Loans given
Ganesh Vishal Infra Engineering Private Limited ¥6.70 20080
Imterest Income
Ganesh Vishal Infra Engineering Private Limitoed 743 (i X
Outstanding balance at the end of the year
Amount Payable
Ganesh Benzoplast Limited 3.7 .27
Amount Receivable
Ganesh Vishal Infra Engineering Private Limited O 5 2088
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Note 4d. Expenditure Towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

(% in million)
As at As at
Pafica March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year (.93 L07

Amount of expenditure incurred 0,94 1.07

Shortfall at the end of the year p -

Total of previous years shortall Z u

Renason for shortfall = =

MNature of CSR activities Education, Education,

Health, hunger, Health, Rural

physically Development,

disabled and hunger,

blind people physically

disabled and

blind peaple

Details of related party tansactions in  relation to CSE NA MA
expenditure ag per relevant
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Note 45, Ratios
{¥ in million
Year Year
ended ended +a
Particulars | Numerator Denominator March | March v Reason for Variance
31,2024 | 31,2003 | Varianc
Ratio | Ratio =
Current  ratio  has
Current Current ; . decreased primarily on
Ratio assets Crrrent linbilities 240 421 0 account of increase in
trade payable
Total borrowings rabion
Debt-equity | Total . g8
satlo Borrowings Total Equity 0.00 0.00 -26% | docreased  due  to
repayment of term loan,
Profit before | Interest Cast + Long Term
Debt Tax, Borrowings  scheduled Fatio has improved due
service Exceptional | principal repayments 154% | increass in
coVviTage Items, (excluding prepayments / 68.63 2703 profitability and
ratin Deprecietion, | refinancing) during  the decrizase in debt.
Interest cost | year)
Return on equity has
Beturn  on | Net  Profits | Average  Shareholder's a7y, | increased mainly due to
equity ratio | after taxes Equity 0.08 0.06 mcrease  in  current
year's profit,
Not applicable since the
Inventory | Revenue
turnover fromm Average Inventory - - | Sompany in oot Bngaged
Ratio operations in any manmnfacturing or
trading activities
::md'ﬁnblas FevEE :::nd: i MME
. ver ratio a
turmover meaﬁﬂns Avernge Trade Receivabls 34 % o due to increase in trade
ratio e recaivabls
Trade
Ratio has improved dus
ables Net Credit P -
E;.m: Purchases | Average Trade Payables - €yl -30% |k better  working
i capital management
Met capital | Revenue
turnover from Working Capital 58%
ralio operations 72 s
Net profit . . Increase in profit during
b % Met Profit _Iier.rmue from operations 15% 11% 7% he year 202324,
Return on | Earnings Tangible Met Worth (MNet
capital before Worth-Intangible Asset) + 10% g 204,
employed | interest and | Total Debt + Deferred Tax
% taxes Linbility
Met
gainy/ (loss)
Eeturn  on ﬂi;:lle -y Average investment (n 3368,
investmant changss  of current investments 005 Q.01
current
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Note 46. Segmental Reporting

The management reviewed company's business as the single segment during the financial year, Thus, as per Ind
AS 108, all the business activities fall within a single primary segment, The information relating to revenue
from external customers and location of non-current assets of its single reportable segment has been disclosed

a8 below:
1. Thare are no non- current asseds held by company outside India;
2. Revenue from operations is accrued and realised in India, no export revenue;
3. During the year ended March 31, 2024, one customer (one customer during the year ended March 31,
2023) contributed to more than 10% of the Company revenoe,

MNote 47. Other Statutory Information
(1) Mo proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under

the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1968 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereurnder.

{Z) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(3} The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

{4) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with the Registrar of
Companies (ROC) bayond the statutory period.

(5) The Company has compiled with the number of layers prescribed under clause (B7) of section 2 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (RestricHons on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

(6] There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax
assessments under the Income

(7) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible
assets or both during the current or previous year,

{8} The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the
purpases for which such loans were taken.

(%) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (Ulimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(10) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(s), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

{i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries
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(12) Value of imports caleulated on C.LF basis by the company during the financial year.
There were no imports during FY 202324

{13} Expenditure In foreign currency during the financial year on account of royalty, know-how, professional
and consultation fees, interest, and other matters

* Ihere were no expenditure in foreign currency during F.Y. 2023-24
* There were no eamnings in foreign currency during F.Y, 2023-24
Note 48, Previous period figures have been regrouped / recasted [ reclassified wherever MECEsSary.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.
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